
Date Published:1 December 2017     

Constitution Committee

Monday 11 December 2017 at 3.00 pm

Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

To note any apologies for absence.

Laura Powick

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2017.

Laura Powick

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To answer any written public questions about matters which are 
within the powers and duties of the Committee.  The closing 
date/time for receipt of questions is 10.00am on Monday 4 
December 2017.  To answer any oral question(s) put by members 
of the public with the consent of the Chairperson.

Depending on the nature of the questions asked it may not be 
possible to provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in 
which case a written answer will be supplied as soon as reasonably 
possible after the meeting.

Laura Powick

4  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

To answer any written members’ questions.  The closing date/time 
for the receipt of questions is 10.00am on Monday 4 December 
2017. 

Laura Powick



    

5  WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY (Pages 9 - 26)

To consider the changes to the Whistleblowing Policy. 

Jane Burns

6  MONITORING OFFICER CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION (Pages 
27 - 32)

To consider the attached reports.

Jane Burns

Membership –  Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE (Chairman), Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Paul Hodgkinson, 
Cllr Nigel Moor, Cllr John Payne, Cllr Rachel Smith, Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cllr Ray Theodoulou and 
Cllr Will Windsor-Clive 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Members are required to sign the attendance list.

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


 

- 1 - 

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Constitution Committee held on Monday 9 October 
2017 at the Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester. 

 
 

PRESENT  

 Cllr Mark Hawthorne 
MBE 
Cllr Colin Hay 
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson 
Cllr Nigel Moor 

 

Cllr John Payne 
Cllr Rachel Smith 
Cllr Lynden Stowe 
Cllr Ray Theodoulou 

 

Apologies: Cllr Will Windsor-Clive 
 

Substitutes: Cllr Tim Harman 
 

Officers: Jane Burns, Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring 
Officer 
Gillian Parkinson, Head of Legal Services 
Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services 
Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 

 
30. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  

 
Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE was appointed as Chairman for the Civic Year (2017/18). 
 

31. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
Following a vote, Cllr Nigel Moor was appointed as Vice-Chairman for the Civic 
Year (2017/18). 
 

32. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Will Windsor Clive. 
 
Cllr Tim Harman substituted at the meeting for Cllr Windsor Clive. 
 

33. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting of 16 January 2017 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.  
 

34. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 
No public questions were received.  
 

35. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 

 

- 2 - 
 

No questions from members were received.  
 

36. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE  
 
Jane Burns, Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring Officer, advised 
members on the role and responsibilities of the Constitution Committee, and 
attention was drawn to the terms of reference for the Committee within the 
Constitution.  
 
In response to a query on the process for allegations of Member misconduct, it was 
explained that a hearings panel, drawn from members of the Audit and Governance 
Committee, would be established to assess and review the allegations.   
 

37. ARRANGEMENT FOR THE CHAIR OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE  
 
The Committee considered the following recommendation, which was agreed by 
members of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC) at its 
meeting on 17 March 2017: 
 
That the arrangement for the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee to be a 
member of the opposition group be formalised.  
 
There was a discussion as to whether members of the party in control of the 
administration should be allowed to vote at full Council where there was more than 
one nomination for the Chair of Audit and Governance. It was recognised that every 
councillor had the right to vote at full Council where there was more than one 
nomination. It was agreed that a protocol for opposition groups to decide on one 
nomination for the Chair of Audit and Governance Committee be considered at the 
next Group Leaders’ meeting.  
 
Action – Simon Harper 
 
The Committee agreed with the spirit of the recommendation by OSMC and agreed 
to amend the recommendation, so that it was: 
 
RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the Constitution be 
amended to include the arrangement for the Chair of Audit and Governance 
Committee to be a member drawn from outside the group or groups forming the 
administration. 
 
 

38. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
Cllr David Norman MBE, Chairman of Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee (GEGSC), presented a proposal for an amendment to the GEGSC 
terms of reference.  
 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 

 

- 3 - 
 

Members noted that GEGSC had also considered several other suggestions to 
improve its efficiency, and noted that Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee had agreed for a standing item to be included on its agenda for the 
Chairman of GEGSC to report on the scrutiny committee’s work.  
 
Members discussed the proposed changes. It was suggested that the amendment 
to the GEGSC terms of reference be revised to include the requirement for GEGSC 
to review the decisions, plans and policies of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth 
Joint Committee. The Committee considered and agreed the revised amendment to 
the GEGSC terms of reference. 
 
RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the terms of reference for 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee be amended to the 
following: 
 

1) To review the decisions, plans and policies of the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Committee and 
 

2) To review the overall impact and delivery outcomes of the Gloucestershire 
Strategic Economic Plan and to make recommendations to the 
Gloucestershire Local Enterprise Community Interest Company and 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee on issues and 
improvements.  

 
  
 

39. GLOUCESTERSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - PROPOSED 
CHANGES TO THE TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
The Committee considered the proposed changes to the Gloucestershire Health 
and Wellbeing Board (GHWB) terms of reference. 
 
It was clarified that, under legislation, nominations for elected members to the 
Health and Wellbeing Board were made by the leader of the local authority where 
executive arrangements were in operation. Political proportionality was not applied. 
 
The Committee noted the proposed changes to the GHWB terms of reference in 
relation to the membership of the Board, particularly that the portfolios of the four 
Cabinet Members nominated to the Board by the Leader had been added to the 
membership. It was suggested that this amendment to the terms of reference be 
revised to state that four county councillors were members of the Board, as 
appointed by the Leader of the County Council. 
 
The Leader’s decision not to nominate opposition group members to the Board was 
queried. Several members expressed their view that the presence of opposition 
group members on the GHWB would allow for healthy challenge. 
 
The Leader explained his wish for the Cabinet Members with relevant portfolios to 
attend GHWB meetings. Several members commented that scrutiny of the Board 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 

 

- 4 - 
 

could be pursued through the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(HCOSC), and the distinct roles of the GHWB and HCOSC were highlighted. 
Members were reminded that individual members on the Board were non-voting, 
and that instead, each member organisation or group of organisations had one 
vote. 
 
On being put to a vote, the revised amendment to the GHWB terms of reference 
was agreed.  
 
RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the revised terms of 
reference for the Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing Board be amended under 
the membership for the Board to be approved and adopted: 
 

1. The removal of the County Council Cabinet Member for Health and 
Wellbeing, Gloucestershire County Council (or equivalent) (Chair), and the 
County Council Cabinet Member for Vulnerable Families, Gloucestershire 
County Council; 

2. The removal of the Liberal Democratic and Labour Spokespersons for Public 
Health and Communities; 

3. The addition of ‘Four county councillors, as appointed by the Leader of the 
County Council’; and 

4. The addition of the Chief Fire Officer for Gloucestershire.  
 

40. ORAL QUESTIONS AT COUNCIL  
 
Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE explained to the Committee that, under the current 
arrangements in the Constitution, an oral question could be asked by a member of 
the public at each ordinary meeting of the full Council, providing that notice of the 
question was given to the Chief Executive at least 30 minutes prior to the start of 
the meeting.  
 
Cllr Hawthorne MBE suggested that 30 minutes notice was too short to enable the 
Cabinet member responding to the question the time to provide a comprehensive 
answer. It was noted, in reference to the report attached to the agenda, that none of 
the six district councils within the County, and only one of the four neighbouring 
authorities researched, detailed any arrangements in their constitutions for the 
asking of oral questions, and only in exceptional circumstances.  
 
The Committee considered whether the Procedural Standing Order for the asking of 
oral questions by members of the public should be amended or removed.  
 
One member felt that the opportunity for members of the public to ask oral 
questions at meetings of full Council was an important part of democratic 
engagement. Another member suggested that it was important to give members of 
the public the flexibility to ask questions at the last minute, where questions were of 
an urgent and topical nature.  
 
Several members expressed the view that having earlier notification of oral 
questions would allow the necessary research to be carried out for  more detailed 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 

 

- 5 - 
 

written answers to be provided. The Committee was also reminded that chairs of 
committees, in addition to Cabinet members, could also be asked questions by 
members of the public.  
 
One member queried whether written answers to the questions that were unable to 
be answered orally at full Council could be shared with all members. It was agreed 
that these written answers could be published on the Council website alongside the 
minutes of the meeting.  
 
Action – Simon Harper  
 
Following a detailed discussion, Cllr Colin Hay proposed an amendment to the 
Constitution which determined that an oral question could be asked by a member of 
the public, provided that he or she gave notice of the question to the Chief 
Executive by 8am on the day of the meeting. 
 
The Committee voted on the proposal by Cllr Hay, which was defeated. 
 
Cllr Hawthorne MBE proposed that the Constitution be amended to state that 
members of the public may ask an urgent question which the Chairperson of the 
Council considers could not have been reasonably submitted by the deadline for 
the receipt of written questions, provided that he or she gave written notice of the 
question to the Chief Executive by 12 noon the day before the meeting. This would 
replace the current Procedural Standing Order which allowed for oral questions to 
be asked by members of the public, providing that notice was given to the Chief 
Executive at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting.  
 
The Committee voted on the proposal by Cllr Hawthorne MBE, which was upheld.  
 
RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the Constitution be 
amended under Part 4, section 9, Procedural Standing Orders, to state that 
members of the public may ask an urgent question which the Chairperson of the 
Council considers could not have been reasonably submitted by the deadline for 
the receipt of written questions, providing that he or she gives written notice of the 
question to the Chief Executive by 12 noon the day before the meeting.  
 
 
 

41. MOTIONS AT MEETINGS OF THE FULL COUNCIL  
 
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson informed the Committee that he had asked for an item on 
motions at meetings of full Council to be included on the agenda for discussion at 
this meeting. He explained that at the full Council meeting on 13 September 2017, a 
number of motions could not be considered due to insufficient time, despite 
indicative timings for each motion having been agreed prior to the meeting at the 
Chairman’s briefing.  
 
Cllr Hodgkinson asked the Committee to consider either a change in protocol which 
determined that the Chairman of the Council must stick to the indicative timings 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 

 

- 6 - 
 

agreed, or a change to the Constitution to increase the amount of time allocated for 
motions to be debated at meetings of full Council.  
 
One member commented that it would not be in the interest of democracy to stop 
members from speaking on a motion should they wish to, if the time that had been 
agreed to debate that motion had already been reached. 
 
Cllr Hodgkinson acknowledged that the indicative timings agreed at the Chairman’s 
briefing could not be rigidly stuck to, however suggested that, as far as possible, 
timings should be kept to.  
 
One member highlighted that the 2 hour limit for the consideration of motions 
helped constrain the length of full Council meetings. The Committee noted that prior 
to 2013, each political group was allocated 30 minutes for their motions to be 
debated within the overall limit of 2 hours.  
 
There was a discussion regarding the suspension of the Procedural Standing Order 
for the time spent on motions and the role of the Chairman of the Council in 
managing the debate on motions. Reference was made to ‘Knowles on Local 
Authority Meetings: A Manual of Law and Practice.’ 
 
One member expressed their concern over any further limitations to the time 
allocated for the consideration of motions, highlighting that opposition groups had 
only 5 opportunities per civic year to bring motions for debate. It was clarified that 
that the order in which motions were taken at full Council was the order in which 
they were received by Democratic Services.  
 
The Committee discussed the options for handling the timing of motions at 
meetings of full Council in detail, and it was agreed that the issue be referred to 
Group Leaders for their consideration. 
 
Action – Simon Harper  
 
  
 

42. CHANGES TO THE EMPLOYEE CODE OF CONDUCT  
 
Jane Burns informed the Committee that she had committed to regularly reviewing 
the Employee Code of Conduct.  
 
The Committee noted that there had been minor changes to the Employee Code of 
Conduct, specifically a recommendation for staff to wear the ID badges provided 
and references to standard forms for gifts and hospitality. It was also noted that 
further changes to the Code were anticipated in respect of the Whistleblowing 
Policy, which was currently being reviewed by the external charity Public Concern 
at Work as part of a wider piece of work looking at the Council’s culture.  
 
In response to a query, it was explained that it was recommended that members 
wear their ID badges, however it could not be enforced. 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 

 

- 7 - 
 

 
RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the revised Employee 
Code of Conduct be approved and adopted. 
 

43. MONITORING OFFICER CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION  
 
RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL to ratify the changes to the 
Constitution, as set out in the reports, by the Monitoring Officer under delegated 
powers.  
 
 

 
CHAIRMAN 

 
Meeting concluded at 4.20 pm 

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 
 

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 
 

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

11 December 2017 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION  
 

The Audit and Governance Committee’s terms of reference include a 
responsibility to formulate and keep under review the Council’s 
Whistleblowing policy. 

 
Members will know that following the County Council meeting on 28 June 

2017, we have commissioned an independent review of our whistleblowing 

arrangements.  We appointed Public Concern at Work, the leading 

Whistleblowing Charity, to review our arrangements. They have done detailed 

document reviews and spoken to a range of managers and whistleblowers. 

2. NEW WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 

Following on from their reviews, they have recommended a re-write of our 

Whistleblowing Policy (attached Appendix 1) which is appended to the 

Employee Code of Conduct and which forms part of the Council’s 

Constitution. 

 

We have completely re-written the policy, based on their model policy at 

Appendix 2.  The new policy has been shared with the Corporate 

Management Team and representatives of the main Trade Unions.  They are 

supportive of the changes. 

 

The draft has also been shared with Group Leaders and Audit and 

Governance members.  Their views will be fed in at the meeting. 

3. RECOMMENDATION 

That the Committee consider the revised Whistleblowing Policy and 
recommends approval and adoption to full Council.  

 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 EXISTING POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
CONFIDENTIAL  REPORTING PROCEDURE FOR EMPLOYEES (WHISTLE 

BLOWING) 

 
1. Employees are often the first to realise that there may be something wrong within the 

Council. However, they may not express their concerns because they feel that speaking 

up would be disloyal to their colleagues or to the Council. They may also fear 

harassment or victimisation and it may be easier, therefore, to ignore the concern rather 

than report what may just be a suspicion of malpractice. 

 
2. The Council is committed to the highest standards of openness, probity and 

accountability. It expects employees, and others that it deals with, who have serious 

concerns about any aspect of the Council's work, to come forward and voice those 

concerns. The phrase 'whistle-blowing' in this procedure refers to the disclosure 

internally or externally by employees of malpractice, as well as illegal acts or omissions 

at work. 

 
3. This Procedure makes it clear that employees can report, in a confidential manner, their 

concerns without fear of victimisation, subsequent discrimination or disadvantage and is 

intended to encourage and enable serious concerns to be raised with the Council, 

rather than overlooking a problem or 'blowing the whistle' outside. 

 
AIMS AND SCOPE OF THIS PROCEDURE 

 
4. This Procedure aims to : 

 
• encourage employees to feel confident in raising serious concerns in those cases 

where they do not wish to use the normal reporting routes within their service 

area 

• provide alternative avenues for raising concerns 

• ensure that responses to concerns are made 

• to reassure employees that they will be protected from possible reprisals or 

victimisation if they have a reasonable belief that they have raised a concern in 

the public interest 

 
5. There are existing procedures in place to enable employees to lodge a grievance 

relating to their own employment. This Procedure is intended to cover concerns that fall 

outside the scope of other procedures and include: 

 
• conduct which is an offence or a breach of law 

• disclosures  related to miscarriages of justice 

• health and safety risks, including risks to the public as well as other employees 

(where the concerns raised have not been addressed through normal 

departmental procedures) 

• damage to the environment 

 
Issue No.28 -March 2017 
P a g e 1 192 

Page 11



 
 
 
 

• the unauthorised use of public funds including fraud and corruption sexual or 

physical abuse 

• inappropriate use of or access to personal or sensitive information 

• other unethical or unprofessional conduct 

• notification  of any suspicions  of  price-fixing  cartels  providing services/goods  to 

the Council 

 
6. The Council fully understands that employees who are members of a trade union 

recognised by the Council may, in the first instance, wish to seek advice and guidance 

from their union on the application of this Procedure (see 

paragraph 23 of this Appendix). 

 
7. Any serious concerns that employees have about any aspect of service provision, or the 

conduct of employees or members of the Council or others acting on behalf of the 

Council, can be reported under this Procedure. This may be about something that: 

 
• makes an employee feel uncomfortable in terms of apparent non-adherence to 

known standards 

• appears to be contrary to the requirements of the Council's Standing Orders and 

Code of Conduct 

• falls below established standards of practice 

• may amount to improper conduct 

• appears to be an attempt to mislead 
 

SAFEG UARDS 

Harassment or Victimisation 

 
8. The Council recognises that the decision to report a concern can be a difficult one to 

make, not least because of the fear of reprisal from the person(s) who is the subject of 

the complaint. However, if employees believe that what they raise as a concern to be 

the truth and in the public interest they should be confident that they are fulfilling their 

duty to their employer and those for whom they are providing a service. 

 
9. The Council will not tolerate any form of sexual, racial or general harassment or 

victimisation and will take appropriate action to protect employees, when they raise a 

concern in the public interest, from suffering a detriment (including bullying or 

harassment) either from the employer or from co-workers. 

 
10. Any investigation into allegations of potential malpractice will be dealt with separately to 

any grievance, disciplinary or redundancy procedure concerning an employee. Equally, 

any investigation will not be influenced by any such procedures involving an employee. 
 
 
 
 
 

Issue No.28 -March 2017 

P a g e 1 193 

Page 12



 
 

 
CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
11. All concerns will be treated in confidence and every effort will be made to protect an 

employee's identity if that is their wish. However this cannot be guaranteed if say 

following an investigation a case is taken to Court, where the employee may need to be 

called as a witness. 

 
ANONYMOUS  ALLEGATIONS 

 
12. In order to ensure that employees receive protection of the Public Interest Disclosure 

Act 1998 employees should put their name to their allegation. Concerns expressed 

anonymously are sometimes less credible. Anonymous concerns and allegations, 

whether made to the Monitoring Officer or Head of Internal Audit, will therefore be 

investigated at the discretion of the Council. 

 
13. In exercising this discretion the factors to be taken into account would include: 

 
• the seriousness of the issues raised 

• the credibility of the concern; and 

• the  likelihood  of  confirming  the  allegation  from  attributable  sources'  factual 

evidence. 

 
UNTRUE ALLEGATIONS 

 
14. If an employee makes an allegation in the public interest, but it is not confirmed by the 

investigation, no action will be taken against them. If, however, an allegation is frivolous, 

malicious or for personal gain, disciplinary action may be taken against them. 

 
HOW TO RAISE A CONCERN 

 
15. Employees who wish to raise a serious concern should do so verbally or in writing 

(marked 'Confidential') to the: 

 
Monitoring Officer 

Gloucestershire County Council 

Shire Hall 

Gloucester GL1 2TZ 

Telephone:  (01452) 328472 

 
The Monitoring Officer will refer all concerns in relation to possible financial impropriety 
to the Director: Strategic Finance and/or the Head of Internal Audit. 

 
16. Alternatively employees may wish to use the Council's 24 hour "whistleblowing" 

answerphone service on Gloucester 01452 - 427052 to report any concern relating to 

possible fraud, corruption, conduct or mal-practice/administration. 
 
 
 

Issue No.28 -March 2017 

P a g e 1 194 

Page 13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17. Employees who wish to make a written statement/report are invited to set out: 

 
• the background and history of the concern 

• relevant dates, person involved 

• details of supporting evidence 

 
18. Although employees are not expected to prove an allegation they will need to 

demonstrate that the disclosure is in the public interest. 

 
HOW THE COUNCIL WILL RESPOND 

 
19. The Council will respond to such concerns and, where appropriate, the matters raised 

may be: 

 
• investigated by management, Internal Audit, or through the disciplinary process 

• referred to the Police 

• referred to the External Auditor 

• the subject of an independent inquiry 

 
20. In order to protect individuals and those involved in the concern, initial enquiries will be 

made to decide whether an investigation is appropriate and, if so, what form it should 

take. The overriding principle which the Council will take into account is public interest; 

however, the Council has a zero tolerance attitude to any fraudulent activity. Concerns 

or allegations which fall within the scope of specific procedures (for example, child 

protection) will normally be referred for consideration under those procedures. 

 
21. Within 10 working days of a concern being raised, the Monitoring Officer will write to the 

employee concerned at their private address:- 

 
• acknowledging that the concern has been received 

• indicating how s/he proposes to deal with the matter 

• telling the employee whether any initial enquiries have been made 

• telling the employee whether further investigations will take place and, if not, why 

not 

 
22. If the matter is subject to further investigation the employee will be informed of any 

progress and proposed timescale for the investigation. The amount of contact between 

the officers considering the issues and the employee raising the concern will depend on 

the nature of the matters raised, the potential difficulties involved and the clarity of the 

information provided. If necessary, the Council will seek further information from the 

employee raising the concern. 

 
23. A representative of a trade union recognised by the Council or work place colleague 

may accompany an employee during any stage of an investigation conducted under this 

Procedure. 
 

 
Issue No.28 -March 2017 

P a g e  1 195 

Page 14



 
 

 

24. The Council will take steps to minimise any difficulties which may be experienced as a result of 

raising a concern. For instance, where an employee is required to give evidence in criminal or 

disciplinary proceedings the Council will arrange for them to receive advice about the procedures 

involved. 

 
25. The Council accepts that employees need to be assured that matters of concern have been properly 

addressed and, therefore, subject to legal constraints, employees will be informed of the outcome of 

any investigation. 
 

 
THE RESPONSIBLE OFFICER 

 
26. The Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of this 

Procedure. S/he will ensure that a record of concerns raised and the outcomes recorded is 

maintained in a form that does not breach confidentiality. 

 
FURTHER ACTION 

 
27. This Procedure is intended to assist employees who wish to raise concerns within the Council. 

The Council hopes employees will be satisfied with any action taken. However, if they are not, and 

they feel it is right to take the matter outside the Council,  the following organisations are possible 

contact points: 

 
• Health & Safety Executive 

• Environment Agency 

• External Auditors 

• Prudential Regulation Authority 

• Financial Conduct Authority 

• Department for Work and Pensions 

• Equality and Human Rights Commission 

• Serious Fraud Office 

• Action Fraud 

• Information Commissioner's  Office 

• Trade Union 

• HM Revenue and Customs 

• Relevant Voluntary Organisation 

• Charity Commission 

• Police 

• 'Public Concern at Work' (tel: 0207 404 6609) 

 
28. If employees do decide to take the matter outside the Council, they must ensure that they do not 

disclose to a third party any Council confidential information. If employees are in any doubt, they are 

strongly advised to seek the confidential advice of the Monitoring Officer before taking any action to 

ensure that they are not putting themselves in a vulnerable position. 

 
 

Issue No.28 -March 2017 

P a g e J  196 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 New Policy 

 

Gloucestershire County Council 
 

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY  
 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 

 

All of us at one time or another have a concern about what is happening at work.   
Usually these are easily resolved.  However, when the concern feels serious 
because it is about a possible fraud, danger, corruption or malpractice or 
maladministration (the term used when the council has done something wrong 
which affects a member of the public) that might affect others or the Council itself, it 
can be difficult to know what to do. 
 
You may be worried about raising such a concern and may think it best to keep it to 
yourself, perhaps feeling it’s none of your business or that it’s only a suspicion.  You 
may feel that raising the matter would be disloyal to colleagues, managers or to the 
Council.  You may decide to say something but find that you have spoken to the 
wrong person or raised the issue in the wrong way and are not sure what to do next. 
 
Elected Members and senior managers of Gloucestershire County Council are 
committed to running the organisation in the best way possible and to do so we 
need your help.  We have updated this policy to reassure you that it is safe and 
acceptable to speak up and to enable you to raise any concern you may have about 
malpractice at an early stage and in the right way.  Any reported concern will be 
taken seriously.  Rather than wait for proof, we would prefer you to raise the matter 
when it is still a concern.   
 
This policy applies to all those who work for us and with us, including 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service, whether full-time or part-time, employed 
through an agency or as a volunteer.  If you work in a school, each school will have 
its own whistleblowing policy and this can often be found within the ‘Code of 
Conduct and Confidential Reporting Procedure (Whistle-Blowing) for School 
Employees in Maintained Schools’.  However if you do not have access to this 
policy and cannot raise it with the school governors, you can contact the Head of 
Education (details on page 3).   
 
The Whistleblowing Policy is primarily for concerns where you witness something 
which affects other people – groups of colleagues, service users, members of the 
public or the organisation itself. 
  
If, you wish to make a complaint about your own employment or how you 
personally have been treated, please use the grievance procedure or the Dignity 
and Respect at Work (Anti-Bullying) Policy - which you can get from Staffnet (links)  

Page 17

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/employee-information-and-support/hr-and-employment-handbook/


 

  
Page 2 

 
  

in the Employee Handbook or your manager or the HR Adviser on Contact Us 
(01452 425888).  
 
If you have a concern about financial misconduct or fraud, you can contact Internal 
Audit. 
 
If you have a concern at a health and safety issue that has not been resolved using 
the steps explained in this policy, you can contact the Safety, Health and 
Environment (SHE) Team. E-mail:she@gloucestershire.gov.uk telephone:01452 
425350. 
 
If something is troubling you which you think we should know about or look into, if 
you are not sure which is the right route, or if you want to speak to someone in 
confidence, please read on. 

 
If in doubt - raise it! 
 

OUR ASSURANCES TO YOU 

 
Your safety 
Elected Members and senior managers of Gloucestershire County Council are 
committed to this policy.  Provided you are raising a genuine concern, it does not 
matter if you are mistaken.  Of course we do not extend this assurance to someone 
who maliciously raises a matter they know is untrue.   
 
If you raise a genuine concern under this policy, you will not be at risk of losing your 
job or suffering any form of reprisal as a result.  We will not tolerate the harassment 
or victimisation of anyone raising a genuine concern and we consider it a 
disciplinary matter to victimise anyone who has raised a genuine concern. 
 
Your confidence 
With these assurances, we hope you will raise your concern openly and at the first 
opportunity.  However, we recognise that there may be circumstances when you 
would prefer to speak to someone confidentially first.  If this is the case, please say 
so at the outset.  If you ask us not to disclose your identity, we will not do so without 
your consent unless required by law.  You should understand that there may be 
times when we are unable to resolve a concern without revealing your identity, for 
example where your personal evidence is essential.  In such cases, we will discuss 
with you whether and how the matter can best proceed. 
 
Please remember that if you do not tell us who you are (and therefore you are 
raising a concern anonymously) it will be much more difficult for us to look into the 
matter.  We will not be able to protect your position or to give you feedback.  
Accordingly you should not assume we can provide the assurances we offer in the 
same way if you report a concern anonymously. 
 

Page 18

mailto:%20she@gloucestershire.gov.uk


 

  
Page 3 

 
  

If you are unsure about raising a concern you can get confidential independent 
advice from Public Concern at Work (see contact details under Independent 
Advice). 
 

HOW TO RAISE A CONCERN INTERNALLY 

 
Please remember that you do not need to have firm evidence of wrong-doing before 
raising a concern.  However we do ask that you explain as fully as you can the 
information or circumstances that gave rise to your concern. 
 
Step one 
If you have a concern, we hope you will feel able to raise it first with your manager 
or team leader.  This may be done verbally or in writing.   
 
Step two 
If you feel unable to raise the matter with your manager, for whatever reason, 
please raise the matter with: 
 

 Your own Head of Service or Director 

 Theresa Mortimer, Chief Internal Auditor or Janet Bruce, Principal Auditor 

 Mandy Quayle, Head of HR and OD or Colin Parkin, Assistant Head of HR 

 Gillian Parkinson, Head of Legal Services or Sarah Farooqi, Principal Lawyer 

 For Schools: Tim Browne, Head of Education 
 

These people have been given special responsibility and training in dealing with 
whistleblowing concerns. 
 
If you want to raise the matter confidentially, please say so at the outset so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 
 
Step three 
If these channels have been followed and you still have concerns, or if you feel that 
the matter is so serious that you cannot discuss it with any of the above, please 
contact: 
 
 Jane Burns 
 Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring Officer 
 Gloucestershire County Council 
 Shire Hall 
 Gloucester GL1 2TZ 
 Telephone 01452 328472 
 Email: jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk 
  
The Monitoring Officer will refer all concerns in relation to possible financial 
impropriety or irregularity to Theresa Mortimer, the Chief Internal Audit (CIA) and/or 
Jo Walker, Director of Strategic Finance. 
 

Page 19

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk


 

  
Page 4 

 
  

You may wish to use our 24 hour “whistleblowing” answerphone service on 01452 
427052 which is managed by Internal Audit or the on-line form (link) which goes 
direct to the Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring Officer. 
 
 

INDEPENDENT ADVICE  

 
If you are unsure whether to use this policy or you want confidential advice at any 
stage, you may contact the independent charity Public Concern at Work on 08000 
499 778 or by email at helpline@pcaw.org.uk.  Their legal advisers can talk you 
through your options and help you raise a concern about malpractice at work.   
 
If you are a member of a trade union, you can also contact them for advice (see 
page 9).  
 
 

CONCERNS ABOUT SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AND CHILDREN 

 
The County Council is responsible for investigating concerns about safeguarding 
adults or children or child protection matters. These should be raised under 
separate procedures, details below: 
 
If you think someone else is being abused, you must tell someone: 

Call the Police 

 Telephone 101 

 In an emergency telephone 999 

For adults, you can contact the Adult Help Desk 

 Telephone 01452 426868 

 You can also email: socialcare.enq@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

 
For children, you can contact the Children's Helpdesk 

 Telephone 01452 426565 

 You can also email: childrenshelpdesk@gloucestershire.gov.uk  

 
If you are worried or concerned about anyone under 18 who you think is being 
abused or neglected or that a child and their family need help and support please 
call 01452 426565. 
 

HOW WE WILL HANDLE THE MATTER  

 

We will acknowledge receipt of your concern within 10 working days. We will assess 
it and consider what action may be appropriate.  This may involve an informal 
review, an internal inquiry or a more formal investigation.  We will tell you who will 

Page 20

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/complaints-and-feedback/whistleblowing/
mailto:helpline@pcaw.org.uk
mailto:socialcare.enq@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:childrenshelpdesk@gloucestershire.gov.uk


 

  
Page 5 

 
  

be handling the matter, how you can contact them, and what further assistance we 
may need from you.  We will write to you summarising your concern and setting out 
how we propose to handle it and provide a timetable for feedback.  If we have 
misunderstood the concern or there is any information missing please let us know. 
 
When you raise the concern it will be helpful to know how you think the matter might 
best be resolved.  If you have any personal interest in the matter, we do ask that 
you tell us at the outset.  If we think your concern falls more properly within our 
grievance, bullying and harassment or other relevant procedure, we will let you 
know. 
  
Whenever possible, we will give you feedback on the outcome of any investigation.  
Please note, however, that we may not be able to tell you about the precise actions 
we take where this would infringe a duty of confidence we owe to another person. If 
you have raised a concern anonymously we will not be able to write to you. 
 
While we cannot guarantee that we will respond to all matters in the way that you 
might wish, we will strive to handle the matter fairly and properly.  By using this 
policy you will help us to achieve this. 
 
If at any stage you experience reprisal, harassment or victimisation for raising a 
genuine concern please contact the HR Advice Line via Contact Us on 01452 
425888.  Choose the HR option which is staffed by HR professionals. You may also 
wish to contact your trade union representative (if you are a trade union member). 
 
There is also the Dignity at Work network which is a group of officers who are one of 
the first points of contact for any employee who believes they are experiencing 
unacceptable behaviour.  You can email them on dignity@gloucestershire.gov.uk or 
an up to date list of officers can be found on the Dignity at Work network page on 
Staffnet here.  
 
Alternatively you can contact any of the people named on page 3, Public Concern at 
Work for independent and confidential advice, or your trade union representative, 
(see page 9) 
 

EXTERNAL CONTACTS  

 
While we hope this policy gives you the reassurance you need to raise your concern 
internally with us, we recognise that there may be circumstances where you can 
properly report a concern to an outside body.   In fact, we would rather you raised a 
matter with the appropriate regulator than not at all. The following organisations are 
possible contact points. 
 
Public Concern at Work (or, if applicable, your tradeunion) will be able to advise 
you on such an option if you wish.    
 
 
 

Page 21

mailto:dignity@gloucestershire.gov.uk
https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/internal-services/occupational-health/dignity-at-work-network/


 

  
Page 6 

 
  

Organisation Role Contact details 

Action Fraud 
 

Report fraud and 
cyber crime. 

Please refer to Internal Audit first. 
 
Tel: 0300 123 2040 
Website: http://www.actionfraud.police.uk/report_fraud  
 

Care Quality 
Commission 
 

Contact them about 
matters relating to 
the provision of 
health and social 
care. 
 

CQC National Customer Service Centre  
Citygate  
Gallowgate  
Newcastle upon Tyne  
NE1 4PA  

Tel: 03000 616161  
Website: www.cqc.org.uk 

cqc - contact us - Report a Concern  

 

Charity 
Commission  
 

Contact them 
about: the proper 
administration of 
charities in England 
and Wales and of 
funds given or held 
for charitable 
purposes in 
England and 
Wales. 
 

Tel: 0300 066 9197  
 
Email: whistleblowing@charitycommission.gsi.gov.uk  
  
Website: www.gov.uk/charity-commission  

Department for 
Work and 
Pensions 
 

Central government 
department 
responsible for 
benefits and 
pensions 
 
 

National Benefit Fraud Hotline 

 
Telephone: 0800 854 440 (English) Telephone: 0800 678 
3722 (Welsh) Textphone: 0800 328 0512 
Monday to Friday, 8am to 6pm 
Find out about call charges 

You can also report suspected benefit fraud online or by 
post. 

National Benefit Fraud Hotline  
Mail Handling Site A  
Wolverhampton  
WV98 2BP  

 

Environment 
Agency 
 

Contact them 
about: acts and 
omissions which 
have an actual or 

National Customer Contact Centre  
PO Box 544  
Rotherham  
S60 1BY  

Page 22

http://www.actionfraud.police.uk/report_fraud
http://www.cqc.org.uk/
http://www.cqc.org.uk/contact-us/report-concern/report-concern-if-you-are-member-staff#tab-2
mailto:whistleblowing@charitycommission.gsi.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/charity-commission
https://www.gov.uk/call-charges
https://www.gov.uk/report-benefit-fraud


 

  
Page 7 

 
  

potential effect on 
the environment or 
the management or 
regulation of the 
environment. This 
includes those 
relating to pollution, 
abstraction of 
water, flooding, the 
flow in rivers, inland 
fisheries and 
migratory salmon 
or trout. 
 

 
Tel: 03708 506 506  
Website: www.gov.uk/environment-agency  

Equality and 
Human Rights 
Commission 
 

The Equality and 
Human Rights 
Commission 
(EHRC) monitors 
human rights, 
protecting equality 
across 9 grounds - 
age, disability, 
gender, race, 
religion and belief, 
pregnancy and 
maternity, marriage 
and civil 
partnership, sexual 
orientation and 
gender 
reassignment. 
 
EHRC is an 
executive non-
departmental public 
body, sponsored by 
the Department for 
Education. 
 

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/  
 
Advice Line: 0808 800 0082 

External Auditors 
(Grant Thornton) 
 

Objections to the 
council’s accounts. 

A guide to your rights can be found at 
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/wp-
content/uploads/sites/29/2015/03/Council-accounts-a-
guide-to-your-rights.pdf  
 
Objections should be addressed to the auditor, Grant 
Thornton UK LLP, The Canterbury Business Centre, 18 
Ashchurch Road, Tewkesbury, GL20 8BT. 
 

Page 23

http://www.gov.uk/environment-agency
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/wp-content/uploads/sites/29/2015/03/Council-accounts-a-guide-to-your-rights.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/wp-content/uploads/sites/29/2015/03/Council-accounts-a-guide-to-your-rights.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/wp-content/uploads/sites/29/2015/03/Council-accounts-a-guide-to-your-rights.pdf


 

  
Page 8 

 
  

Health and Safety 
Executive 
 

Contact them 
about: 
•the industries and 
work activities for 
which the Health 
and Safety 
Executive is the 
enforcing authority 
under the Health 
and Safety 
(Enforcing 
Authority) 
Regulations 1998 
•the health and 
safety of individuals 
at work, or the 
health and safety of 
the public arising 
out of or in 
connection with the 
activities of persons 
at work 
 

Tel: 0300 003 1647  
 
Online form: www.hse.gov.uk/contact/raising-your-
concern.htm  
 
Or contact GCC’s Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) 
Team. E-mail:she@gloucestershire.gov.uk 
Telephone:01452 425350. 
 
 

HM Revenue and 
Customs 
 

Contact them 
about: 
•the administration 
of UK taxes 
•the administration 
of national 
insurance and tax 
credits systems 
•customs and 
border-related 
functions 
•criminal 
investigations 
 

HMRC Fraud Hotline  
Cardiff  
CF14 5ZN  
 
Tel: 0800 788 887 
Website: www.gov.uk/government/organisations/hm-
revenue-customs/contact/reporting-tax-evasion  

Information 
Commissioner’s 
Office 
 

Contact them 
about: compliance 
with the 
requirement of 
legislation relating 
to data protection 
and to freedom of 
information. 

The Information Commissioner’s Office  
Wycliffe House  
Water Lane   
Wilmslow  
SK9 5AF  
 
Tel: 0303 123 1113  
Email: casework@ico.org.uk   
Website: www.ico.org.uk  
 
 

Page 24

http://www.hse.gov.uk/contact/raising-your-concern.htm
http://www.hse.gov.uk/contact/raising-your-concern.htm
mailto:%20she@gloucestershire.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/hm-revenue-customs/contact/reporting-tax-evasion
http://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/hm-revenue-customs/contact/reporting-tax-evasion
mailto:casework@ico.org.uk
http://www.ico.org.uk/


 

  
Page 9 

 
  

Gloucestershire 
MPs 
 

 Gloucestershire MPs   

Ofsted 
 

Ofsted is the Office 
for Standards in 
Education, 
Children’s Services 
and Skills. We 
inspect and 
regulate services 
that care for 
children and young 
people, and 
services providing 
education and skills 
for learners of all 
ages.  

Complaints about schools and childminders 

Contact formhttps://www.gov.uk/com...  

Complaints about other providers Ofsted inspects  

Contact formhttps://contact.ofsted...  

General enquiries 

Emailenquiries@ofsted.gov.uk  

Contact formhttps://contact.ofsted...  

General enquiries 0300 123 1231  

Our helpline is open from 8 am until 6 pm, Monday to 
Friday. 

Contact Ofsted about concerns 

EmailCIE@ofsted.gov.uk  

Contact Ofsted about concerns 0300 123 4666  

Police 
 

Gloucestershire 
Constabulary 
Waterwells HQ 
 

 Telephone 101 

 In an emergency telephone 999 

Serious Fraud 
Office 
 

Contact them 
about: serious or 
complex fraud, 
including bribery 
and corruption, in 
England, Wales or 
Northern Ireland 
and civil recovery 
of the proceeds of 
unlawful conduct. 
 

Please refer to Internal Audit first. 
 
The Director of the Serious Fraud Office  
2-4 Cockspur Street  
London  
SW1Y 5BS  
 
Website: www.sfo.gov.uk/contact-us/reporting-serious-
fraud-bribery-corruption  

Trade Union 
 

Formal staff 
representation. 

Gloucestershire County Council recognised list of Trade 
Unions: 
 
https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/217487/trade-
unions-and-professional-associations-may-2017.pdf   
 

 
 
 

Page 25

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgMemberIndexMP.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.gov.uk/complain-about-school
https://contact.ofsted.gov.uk/online-complaints
mailto:enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk
https://contact.ofsted.gov.uk/contact-form
mailto:CIE@ofsted.gov.uk
http://www.sfo.gov.uk/contact-us/reporting-serious-fraud-bribery-corruption
http://www.sfo.gov.uk/contact-us/reporting-serious-fraud-bribery-corruption
https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/217487/trade-unions-and-professional-associations-may-2017.pdf
https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/217487/trade-unions-and-professional-associations-may-2017.pdf


 

  Page 
10 

 
  

MONITORING / OVERSIGHT 

 
The Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for this policy and will review it 
annually with the Audit and Governance Committee. She will ensure that a record of 
concerns raised and the outcomes recorded is maintained in a form that does not 
breach confidentiality monitor the daily operation of the policy and if you have any 
comments or questions, please do not hesitate to let one of their team know. 
 
 
 
Final Draft as at 20 November 2017 

Page 26



Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Whistleblowing Policy
	Appendix 1 Existing GCC Whistleblowing Policy
	Appendix 2 GCC Whistleblowing Policy Oct 2017 final draft

	6 Monitoring Officer Changes to the Constitution
	Monitoring Officer Change to the Constitution - 27 Nov 2017


